ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 7, 2003
1:15 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Hugh Fate, Chair
Representative Beverly Masek, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Bob Lynn

Representative Carl Morgan
Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative David CGuttenberg
Representative Beth Kerttul a

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Cheryll Heinze
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane

Kevin Duffy - Juneau

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

KEVI N DUFFY, Conm ssi oner

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nted conm ssioner of the
Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane.

DON JOHNSON

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the appoi ntnent of Kevin Duffy
as the comm ssioner of the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane; he
asked if Comm ssioner Duffy's intention was to hire a deputy

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2003



commi ssioner for the comrercial fisheries as had been indicated
to the sport fishing industry.

PAUL SHADURA, President and Executive Director

Kenai Peni nsul a Fi shernen's Associ ation

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the appointnent of
Kevin Duffy as the conm ssioner of the Al aska Departnment of Fish
& Gane

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-25, SIDE A
Number 0001

Representatives Fate, Gatto, Lynn, WIf, and Kerttula were
present at the call to order. Representati ves Masek, Morgan,
and Cuttenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.
Represent ati ve Hei nze was excused.

CHAIR HUGH FATE called the House Resources Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 1:15 p. m

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane

CHAIR FATE announced that the conmmttee would consider the
confirmation of the appointnment of Kevin Duffy as comm ssioner
of the Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane.

Nunmber 0108

KEVI N DUFFY, Conm ssioner, Alaska Departnment of Fish & Gane
(ADF&G), explained that he had mnmet several nenbers of the
commttee both in his previous roles and in his current role,
and that he'd recently engaged in sonme very "spirited" chats
with commttee nenbers. He pledged to work with those nenbers
on issues in ADF&G such as inproving the departnment's science or
col | aborative efforts to ensure that ADF&G has a scientifically
based, sound system in which the departnment works in a
col l aborative fashion with the Board of Gane and the Board of
Fisheries to provide the best information for those bodies to
make all ocation deci sions. Commi ssioner Duffy said he thought
it is the role of ADF&G to inplenment those decisions based on
the regulatory structure that 1is generated based on those
deci sions by the boards. He said there is no doubt that being

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2003



the comm ssioner of ADF&G is a challenging task that covers a
whole range of issues, but he does Ilook forward to the
responsibility and the challenges associated with being the
conmi ssi oner.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY told nmenbers that he'd been with [ADF&G for
over 21 years beginning in 1981, and he'd worked his way up
through the commercial fish "side of the equation.” He said
he'd been introduced to international fisheries issues and North
Pacific [Fishery Managenent] Council (NPFMC) issues in which
[ ADF&G rmanaged groundfish fisheries in the @lf of Al aska and
the Bering Sea, and he'd done that for alnost the last three

years. He noted that there is often controversy over fish and
ganme managenent issues but it comes with the territory of being
comm ssi oner. Comm ssioner Duffy said this is because Al aska

residents feel very strongly about these issues and feel very
connected to the resources and the way resources are nmanaged.
He said it is fair for nmenbers of the public to express those
opi ni ons about how resources are nmanaged and used.

Number 0370

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said he is conmtted as conmm ssioner to good
science and good public policy based on that science and the
managenent of Al aska's fish and gane resources through a system
t hat does recognize the diversity in Al aska.

Number 0417

CHAI R FATE asked Comm ssioner Duffy to address issues that he
t hought may be problematic in the future.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he would start by addressing issues on
fisheries and then nove to ganme issues. He brought attention to
the sal non issue by saying that the state is struggling with | ow
ex-vessel prices and increased conpetition from farnmed sal non.
He said the ex-vessel price for salnon and the |ow ex-vessel
price is ubiquitous across all regions of the state. He said he
t hought potential solutions to help bolster the conmrercial
sal non industry should be addressed on a regional basis. For
exanple, he said a co-op structure had been set up in Chignik
for managenent or for nanagenent allocations and it seens to
work fairly well in that region, but he did not conclude that
that co-op system works in other regions of the state. He said
the closure of Ward's Cove facilities and processing plants had
a big I npact on Sout heast Al aska's sal mon  fisheries.
Comm ssioner Duffy said he believed [ADF&S had been able to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2003



identify sufficient processing capacity to help [the region's]
comercial fishermen. He suggested that people need to focus on
a long-termvision for the salnon industry in Al aska.

COMWM SSIONER  DUFFY said Alan Austerman [Fisheries Policy
Advisor, Ofice of the Governor] had indicated that is a nmjor
focus of his over the next few years. He said he'd pledged his
support for that effort fromhis position and that of the agency

for fisheries issues. Comm ssioner Duffy said he planned to
hire two deputy comm ssioners but it is dependant on [ADF&G s]
budget . He noted that one of those deputy comm ssioners would

focus on fisheries issues and would be tasked with working with
the governor's office to focus on developing a |ong-term vision
for the sal non industry.

Number 0708

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said he thought there is a different solution
for Sout heast and one of the things that should be considered is
a buy-back program to reduce the nunber of participants in the
[sal mon] fleet in Southeast Al aska. He said he thought that was
a concept that would be | ooked at seriously in Bristol Bay. He
explained that the Bristol Bay Econom c Devel opnent Corporation
(BBEDC) had just cone out with a study that focused on the
future of the salnon industry, although had not talked wth
Robi n Sanuel sen from that group he suspected that the concept of
a permt reduction program or buy-back program may be part of
the solution in Bristol Bay.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said he thought nmintaining and increasing
mar ket share wherever possible should be done collectively by
harvesters and processors in the salnon industry, the Board of
Fi sheries, and ADF&G He said he thought Alaska's salnon
production should be focused in donmestic markets and the
Eur opean market Dbecause there seens to be some opportunity
t here. Comm ssioner Duffy suggested that the processing
industry is going through sone restructuring and is probably
going to consolidate some under the current price structures it
is facing. He said there is a whole range of issues in the
commercial salnon fisheries, and as comm ssioner he would I|ike
to really focus on being a part of developing a long-term
strategy.

COW SSIONER DUFFY noted that the state currently has $35
mllion 1in disaster aid funding provided by the federa
governnment for [regions] across the state that have experienced
problens in the sal non industry. He said the administration is

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2003



| ooking at things it mght be able to do to help out the
i ndustry. For exanple, he said fresh salnon fillets in boxes
ready for air shipment are sonetines "bunped" because of other
cargo priorities. The result is that the shipnment sits on the
runway in 60-degree weather, which is not good for the salnon's

quality or Al aska's marketing efforts. He said the
admnistration is considering building cold storage facilities
in airports, but so far has not made a commitnent. He suggested

that the departnent needs to work with the legislature to find
solutions for sone of these problens.

Nunber 0911

COMWM SSIONER DUFFY said a very inportant part of t he
commi ssioner's job is to ensure that ADF& and the divisions
that deal with various fisheries allocations provide the best
scientific information possible to the Board of Fisheries. He
said sonme concerns had been pointed out to him with regard to
different regions of the state and the type or way or quality of
work that [the departnent] provides. He pledged to do all
things possible to ensure that there is internal coordination
between the Division of Sport Fish and the Division of
Comrercial Fisheries and that there is internal peer-reviewed
i nformation. He ensured the commttee that he would work
specifically with the directors of the Dvision of Sport Fish
and the Division of Comercial Fisheries to be sure the
departnment is providing the Board of Fisheries process with the
best quality of scientifically defensible biological information
as possi bl e. He said it is in [ADF&G s] role to provide that
information and it is the Board of Fisheries role to make
al I ocati on deci si ons.

Number 1010

COWMWM SSI ONER DUFFY noted that allocation decisions anong user
groups are controversial. He said it is also [ADF&G s] role to
manage those resources under a regulatory structure consistent
with allocation decisions from the [Board of Fisheries]. He
noted that he would be working to ensure that sound information
i's provided.

Nunber 1062
REPRESENTATI VE WOLF expressed concern about issues during the
previous admnistration regarding mutual trust between the

departnent, the public, and staff nenbers. He said he had
concerns about nmamintaining the highest standard of scientific

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2003



[information] and professionalism within the departnent. He
suggested that these concerns had arisen many tines.
Representative WlIlf offered his belief that some individuals
still working with ADF&G had convoluted the integrity of the
departnment, mani pul ated data nunbers, had not provided accurate
information to the Board of Fisheries, or had worked wth
private organizations to direct allocation issues to manipulate
the [Board of Fisheries]. He asked Conmi ssioner Duffy what he
would do to renove those individuals and ensure that those
activities cease.

Nunber 1206

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA objected to Representative WIf's I|ine
of questi oni ng. She said unless Representative WIf could
provi de [ sone corroborating] evi dence [to support hi s
al l egations] she didn't think [it was appropriate] to inpugn
peopl e's character and ask for [those individuals] to be fired
[from the departnent]. She suggested that the conmm ssioner
should have a chance to review all of the [relevant]
i nformation.

Nunber 1242

CHAIR FATE agreed wth Representative Kerttula and asked
Representative WIf to rephrase his question.

Nunmber 1296

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered Comm ssioner Duffy his inpression
of what it would be like to be the comm ssioner of ADF&G He
noted that a large portion of the public is involved in fish and
gane issues, and he suggested that it is really inportant for
Comm ssioner Duffy to recognize that "reality is not nearly so
inportant as the inpression of reality.” Representative Gatto
said while a lot of people mght think that ADF&G is doing a
wonderful job, he thought that mnmany people have sone serious
concerns about fish and game. He remarked, "Certainly, now that
we're in the flux they have even nore concerns. Representati ve
Gatto suggested that Comm ssioner Duffy had a big problem to
deal with in how to nake people feel better about fish and gane.
He said some of the problens have to do with using Executive
Orders to acconplish things and sone of the problens have to do
wi th Conm ssioner Duffy's qualifications. Representative Gatto
asked Conmi ssioner Duffy if it is true that he didn't have a
background in bi ol ogy.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2003



COW SSI ONER DUFFY answered in the affirmati ve.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said Comm ssioner Duffy's background is
instead in adm nistration and that the [public's perception] may
be [affected negatively] by that information. He noted that he
wasn't criticizing Conmm ssioner Duffy and that he thought the
conmm ssioner had probably done a narvelous job in his career
choi ces or he would not have been [nomi nated for the position of
comm ssi oner] . He said those inpressions of the public are
present and are sonething that Comm ssioner Duffy would be
[ cont endi ng] with in addition to his regular workl oad.
Representative Gatto suggested that the committee neetings and
Comm ssioner Duffy, in particular, is being watched by a |arge
nunber of people. He told Commi ssioner Duffy that he is in
"that ruling position" where people ook at him and start out
with some criticism

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said it is his hope that Conm ssioner Duffy
would be able to overcone sone of that criticism because [he
didn't think it really mattered] that Comm ssioner Duffy's
[ background is in admnistration] because he would be doing a
|l ot of [administrative work]. He said it would be expected that
Comm ssioner Duffy have some "red-hot" biologists that he would
give sonme reign to. He drew a conparison to the war in Iraq,
and he suggested that President [CGeorge] Bush is not running
that war [hinself] and it is going very well. Representati ve
Gatto said in a simlar way the [conm ssioner] of ADF&G shoul d
be relying on [the department’'s] biologists to "essentially run
the operations the best they can.” He indicated that it is
expected that the departnment's biologists would be answering to
Comm ssioner Duffy and [the information that the biologists
provi de] would be right.

Number 1539

COW SSI ONER DUFFY, in response, said as conmissioner it 1is
better for him to approach problens, call them opportunities,
and focus on a solution to solve what sone people consider to be
probl ens. He said he likes to |ook at [problens] as chall enges
and focus on them one at a time to try and find a resolution.
He expressed hope that this method would collectively make a
difference in inproving the situation. He said it is true that
he doesn't have a degree in biology, but he does have a B. A
[ Bachel or of Arts degree] in political science and a Mster's
Degree in public admnistration with a focus on natural resource
managenent. He said he has 21 years of experience in ADF&G in a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2003



nunmber of roles and he has a pretty good understanding of how
ADF&G wor ks.

COM SSI ONER DUFFY said the way ADF&G works under his authority
and wunder previous conm ssioners is that nanagenent decision
maki ng authority on fisheries and wildlife is delegated down to
the area level, which are the biologists and managers that have
the nost expertise on opening and closing [hunting and fi shing]
seasons. He said he reinforces the structure in which decisions

are made at the area level. He said his role of comm ssioner is
not going to put himin a position in which he is going to be
managi ng fisheries. However, he said he wll be tracking

decisions that are made and coordinating through the division
directors to what is happening in different regions of the state
during a fishing season. He said he didn't see it as his role
to engage in managenent decision-naking at the area |evel
because he doesn't have the expertise and he doesn't know all of
the details at any particular point in tine.

Nunmber 1668

COMWM SSIONER DUFFY said it 1is his job to reinforce the
departnent's people out in the field and to give them politica
support; to ensure those people that the people leading the
agency are very supportive of those efforts; and reinforce that
they are the people that nake the decisions. He said he didn't
see it as his role to nmake a bunch of nanagenent decisions on
how fisheries or wildlife resources are managed. Comm ssi oner
Duffy conveyed his belief that his role is to work with the
division directors and the scientific experts in each division
to ensure that nanagenent is effective at the area |evel. He
said the job of the [comm ssioner] is very challenging and he
wel comed the discourse of residents of the state that are very
interested in fish and ganme issues. Commi ssioner Duffy noted
that he is accountable to the |egislature, and he said he would
have an open door policy and the only person that could preenpt
his attendance at a neeting with the Ilegislature is the
gover nor. He clarified that he is a part of the adm nistration
and that [the admnistration] wanted to work wth him as
conmi ssioner on all fish and game nanagenent issues.

COMWM SSIONER  DUFFY, in response to Representative G@Gtto's
coment about the problenms with ADF&G said he would like to
know what all of those conplex issues are.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO tal ked about the comm ssioner's role in
selecting the deputy comm ssioners, and he said even though the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2003



comm ssioner nmay not get involved in commercial fish or sport
fish [issues] the deputy [commissioner] that is selected is
going to send a very powerful nessage. He tal ked about the
bal ance in selecting the deputy [comm ssioners], and he said the
person [the conm ssioner] selects is "absolute dynamte" as far
as the community is concerned. Representative Gatto enphasized
that people are really watching [the comm ssioner], and he told
Comm ssioner Duffy that he is essentially in the mddle of the

"fish bow," which has to do not with his decisions on how to
manage [fisheries] but on whom he picks. He said Comm ssioner
Duffy's success will be determined, to a great degree, on those

sel ecti ons.
Number 1860

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said she represents an area that mainly
consists of sport fishing, and due to the activities on the
Kenai Peninsula it seens like the Susitna R ver and the Little
Susitna River are going to have a pretty big inpact on the
area's sport fishing industry. She said the [increase] in the
nunber of sport fishing licenses that are purchased indicated
that the [amount of sport fishing activity] 1is going up.
Representative Masek noted that she does a lot of traveling
around the Parks H ghway where there is a lot of sport fishing
taki ng place, and she said there is practically "conbat fishing”

in those areas. She turned attention to Comm ssioner Duffy's
resune, and she said she noticed that he didn't appear to have
much i nvol venent in sport fisheries. She noted that

Comm ssioner Duffy's resune did reflect a ot of activity in the
North Pacific [Anadronmous] Fish Conm ssion (NPFMC) and fisheries
in the Bering Sea and the Aleutian |Islands. She asked
Comm ssioner Duffy for his opinion on the sport fishing industry
and on legislation that had been created to address energency
cl osures. She noted that the state had experienced an increase
in population and an increase in the sport fishing industry, and
that both residents and nonresidents take part in the [sport]
fisheries.

Nunmber 1983

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he thought the econom c inportance and
the increased economc inportance from the recreational fishing
industry in Alaska is a known factor and one that he follows.
He explained that he does often work with the Division of Sport
Fi sh, and he tracks recreational interests across the state. He
said he has had direct experience representing recreational
fishermen [for the State of Alaska on negotiation and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2003



i npl enentation] of the Pacific Salnon Treaty. Comm ssi oner
Duffy explained that [Al aska] has a coast w de chinook sal non
agreenent and Southeast Alaska is part of a "conplex set" of
chi nook [salmon] stocks that mgrate up from as far south as

Oregon and Washington State into Southeast waters. He said
[fishernen] capture a great deal of those fish in the Colunbia
River and on the Oegon Coast. Comm ssioner Duffy explained

that the chinook salnon fishery in Southeast Alaska is currently
based on Board of Fisheries regulations that divide [abundance]
between the commercial and recreational fisheries [80 percent to
the comrercial fisheries and 20 percent to the recreational
fisheries].

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK asked Comm ssioner Duffy if he could speak
specifically to the drainage areas around the Susitna River and
the Little Susitna River. She asked Comm ssioner Duffy if those
areas were inpacted by [the Board of Fisheries regulations] that
he was expl ai ni ng.

Number 2060

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said the areas Representative Masek inquired
about were not inpacted by the [regulations] that he was
explaining. He said he was trying to provide the cormmittee with
exanples in which he had represented the recreational fisheries
in terms of negotiating international fishery agreenments wth
Canada and the United States (U.S.). He offered his belief that
he had, in some public forns, represented a recreational fishing

i nterest. Comm ssioner Duffy said the recreational fishery is
directly involved in council halibut issue and as a state
representative on the council he didn't represent just
commercial fishing interests; he represented the interests of
recreational and commercial fishermen as well as subsistence
users for the resource. Comm ssioner Duffy said he recognized

the growi ng inportance of those recreational fisheries issues to
Al aska. He noted that he is not an expert on those issues, and
he said he relies on his division directors in both the
commercial fisheries division and the sport fish division to

keep him informed on those issues. Comm ssioner Duffy said as
comm ssioner he would track those issues and try to be as
know edgeabl e as possible about all sides of any particular
fisheries.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said she thought there were going to be a
|l ot of conflicts comng up. She noted she had been in that area
since 1986, and she said in talking with her constituents in
that area she's realized there is a shortage of access and that

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2003



conbat fishing [is occurring]. She said she didn't know if the
Di vision of Sport Fish had any plans to do anything to help with
the issue the area is facing, and she didn't |like to see conbat
fishing. Representative Masek enphasized the fact that sport
fishing is a big deal because the area receives a |lot of funding
t hrough sport fishing related activities such as the purchase of
fuel and the wutilization of the area' s infrastructure. She
asked Conmi ssioner Duffy to speak to legislation that had been
created to address energency closures.

Number 2192

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY expl ai ned that the Division of Sport Fish had
recently devel oped a strategic plan to address future priorities
and through its funding sources it provides a lot of
recreational access through boat |aunches, ranps, and such to
provi de additional recreation opportunities.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said there is so nmuch demand by recreational
fishermen for access to the resource that it creates the
crowmding conditions that Representative Masek had expressed
concerns about. He said he didn't have any current plans on how
he mght deal wth that 1issue as comm ssioner, but it is
sonet hing that he would consult with his division director about

to try to address some of those issues. Comm ssi oner Duffy
noted that he is famliar with some of the issues relating to
the Kenai Peninsula and the Kenai R ver. He said the bill

relating to energency closures addresses the role of the
comm ssioner followng an allocation decision by the Board of
Fi sheri es. He said in the event that the Board of Fisheries
makes an allocation decision and certain things happen during
the season relative to the abundance of those returning sal non

stocks that m ght provi de additional comer ci al fishing
opportunities wthout wupsetting the allocation plan to other
affected users, [the bill specifies] the commssioner's role

under those circunstances.
Number 2311

COMM SSI ONER DUFFY indicated that in some "circles" it seened as
though his authority is being dimnished sone. Comm ssi oner
Duffy said he felt it was his job to nmanage the agency and to
provide the best information to the board, and once the board
makes an allocation decision, he felt it is the departnent's
role, under his direction, to support those decisions. He said
he thought there is a balance in place, and he wanted to be
careful that he is not put in a role, under statute, in which he

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2003



would be spending a lot of his tinme second-guessing every
decision that the Board of Fisheries nakes depending on what
happens during the season.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said she had done research on sonme court
cases that deal wth subsistence and "the clause that we are
fighting now, that the resource has been put out for each
Al askan; [and] that we should enjoy the ... [resources of] the
state.” She asked Comm ssioner Duffy if he thought the state
was right in inplenmenting the limted fisheries entry permt at
the time, and al so whether he felt that the state shoul d propose
to buy-back the limted entry permts and do away wth the
limted entry fisheries.

Number 2399

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said the question is [difficult] and he
thought the limted entry system was extrenely effective for a
nunber of years in what it was originally intended to do. He
said he thought that because of the way it was structured it was
tinme to ook at sonme different approaches to how it is set up.
Comm ssioner Duffy, in response to the question of whether he
woul d support the idea of the state in buying back limted entry
permts, explained that he would first support working wth
[ Al aska' s] delegation in Washington D.C. to provide sone federa
funds to support sonme sort of a permt reduction in different
regions of the state. He said he thought the limted entry
system until now has been a wunqualified success in nost
ci rcunst ances. However, he said he thought there is a changing
dynamic in the world of comrercial salnon fisheries and | ooking
at buy-back prograns that aren't frustrated by the current
statutes for the |limted entry system mght be a good thing to
pursue. Comnm ssioner Duffy indicated that initially he would be
fiscally conservative because of the fiscal constraints of the
gener al fund. He nmentioned the efforts made by the
adm nistration to be fiscally ~conservative, such as in
stream ining permtting.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK tal ked about Canada's trouble wth its
fisheries, and she suggested that Canada's econony was |argely
dependant on its fisheries at the tinme of the salnon market
crash, and that nost of the workforce's inconme was based mainly
on the industry's fisheries. She said the [salnon market] crash
pronpted the Canadian government to assenble a workforce that
taught fishermen a different occupation to [lessen] their
dependency on the fisheries [market]. Representative Masek said
she thought Alaska is heading in the sane direction [as Canada]

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2003



because of problens the state is having wwth marketing fish, and
she suggested that the state's fisheries are not a viable
i ndustry anynore. She said disaster relief funding is provided
each year to people that meke their living from the fishing
i ndustry. She asked how rmuch |longer [the State] could afford to
subsidize its fisheries and whether the Departnent of Labor
could help to <change the State's workforce and educate
[fishernen] in other [trades], so there isn't the problem of
them not being able to support their famlies and conmuniti es.

Number 2563

COMWM SSIONER DUFFY said he is fairly famliar wth policy
changes in Canada because he had been the Al aska representative
on the [Pacific Salnmon Treaty]. He explained that it's true
that the provincial and federal government in Canada nmade a
policy change years ago to nmke the conmmercial fishing industry
in British Colunbia less of a priority than it had been
hi storically. As a result, he said Canada inplenented a
provi nce-wi de fleet reduction program - a buy-back program for
its comercial fisheries in the different gear gr oups.
Commercial fishing fleets in Canada were reduced by over 50
percent in the past seven years. The fleet reduction program
that the Canadian governnent initiated happened concurrently
wi th sonme declining sal non stocks in Canada.

Number 2607

COWMM SSI ONER DUFFY said he didn't think it was fair to say there
was a disaster situation on the abundance of salnon in Canada,
although there were sone specific declines in sockeye and
chinook stocks in different areas of British Colunbia. He
explained that [the Canadian governnent] nade a conscientious
policy call to reduce the commercial fishing fleet to provide
salnon returns to aboriginal fisheries in Canada and to focus

nore on the recreational fishery. Concurrent with that policy
change, he said Canada has al so been enphasizing finfish farm ng
for salnon, which is closed cage finfish farmng. He said

[ Alaska] had experienced the inpacts of [Canada's finfish
farm ng] and those inpacts are potentially biological.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said each year [Alaskan fishernmen] capture
nore of those escapes from Atlantic salnmon farns in British
Col unmbi a and Sout heast Alaska and in other areas of the state.
He noted there are concerns about that. Comm ssioner Duffy said
Representati ve Masek was shedding doubt on the likely future of
the comrercial salnon industry in Alaska and he appreciated that

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2003



perspective and knew she was very famliar with it. He said
there have been disaster declarations up in AYK [Arctic Yukon-
Kuskokwi m, and Bristol Bay has had a few problens. He said in
sonme circunstances such as in AYK, historically, it has been an
abundance problem and has created financial problens for all
residents in that region who try to nake a living off commerci al
fishing on those stocks. He said the other side of the problem
is the marketing problem - the international conpetition issue
from farmed fish - farm production from Canada, Chile, and
Norway i s strong conpetition.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY indicated the admnistration wanted to focus
on everything it could in an effort to have Al aska's comerci al
salnon fishery be viable. He said there are different
strategies for different regions of the state, and he agreed
that in certain regions of the state [some commercial fisheries]
may not be an effective conmercial engine at sonme point. He
expressed optimsm regarding Alaska's [commerci al sal non]
fisheries, and he said he would Iike to do as much as he could
to [help Alaska's comrercial salnon fisheries]. He said as
conm ssioner he would spend tinme trying to work on that | ong-
range vision for the commercial salnmon fisheries in Al aska.

Nunber 2744
REPRESENTATI VE GQUTTENBERG said he appreci at ed al | of
Comm ssioner Duffy's efforts and acconplishnents. He turned

attention to the problem faced by fish hatcheries, and he asked
Comm ssioner Duffy how much of that problem [is being
addressed]. Representative CQuttenberg said the hatchery | ocated
at Clear [Air Force Station] had closed and one of the
hat cheries |ocated at either Elnendorf Air Force Base or Fort
Ri chardson Arny Post is closing. He remarked, "The mlitary has
said they're losing the hot water off the power plants because
they're outsourcing that; one of them on the short term the
other one on the long term" He said those hatchery facilities
are 20 years old and the science had changed [since those
facilities had been built].

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said there is a nove in Fairbanks to
build a new hatchery using the power plant and federal noney
[had been provided] to do a study about it. He said
Representative Masek made a good point that fisheries get nore
restriction and that creates nore pressure such as the conbat

fishing occurring in Kenai. He indicated Al aska's grow ng
popul ation results in people wanting to fish locally and not
have to travel far. He said one of a fish hatchery's

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2003



[responsibilities] is to stock |ake trout, which gives people
the ability to go to local lakes [for fishing] and [elim nates
the need] for people to travel across the state or take a
commercial fish charter.

Nunmber 2836

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG suggested it was critical to keep sone
of the pressure off sone of those other fisheries and provide
alternative places for people to fish. He asked if the
situation [regarding fish hatcheries had been brought to the
comm ssioner's attention] and whether he is aware of the [fish
hat chery] study occurring in Fairbanks. Representati ve
GQuttenberg suggested there is a crisis, and he said his
understanding is that some fish and gane personnel don't seemto
recogni ze [the crisis] and others do. He asked Conmi ssioner
Duffy if he is famliar with the dialog pertaining to this
si tuation.

COM SSI ONER DUFFY said he is sonewhat famliar with the issue,
but probably not to the sanme degree [as Representative
Gut t enberg] . He said one of his duties was to develop [the
departnent's] federal budget request to support fish and
wildlife managenent in the state. Comm ssi oner Duffy explained
that in Jlast vyear's federal appropriations request [the
departnment] asked for sonme funding for a feasibility study to
|l ook at the concept of a hatchery in Fairbanks and he is
supportive of that effort. He explained that the fish stocking
program is incredibly successful and does provide opportunities
in new |l ocations that sonetinmes relieves pressure el sewhere. He
said he agreed with the concept and he is supportive of the
sport fish-stocking program statew de. Conm ssioner Duffy noted
that the program is very large in the Interior and in the
Mat anuska Val | ey.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY explained that he would support federal
funding to enhance that effort if it is based on feasibility
work that's going to be done in Fairbanks. He said if the
conclusion is it is appropriate to build a facility which wll
hel p provide additional opportunity up in that area, he would be
very supportive of that as conmi ssioner.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF apol ogi zed if he offended anybody with his
previ ous question. He said the perception in the Cook Inlet
region is that there are several people that still remain in the
departnent that are not necessarily friendly to the use of fish
and game for the maxi mum benefit for the residents of Al aska.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- April 7, 2003



Representative Wl f asked Conm ssioner Duffy how he intended to
reorgani ze t he depart nment to ensure t hat t here i's
professionalism and to build trust within the departnent and in
t he public process.

TAPE 03-25, SIDE B
Nunber 2970

COM SSI ONER  DUFFY  spoke  about the departnent's mssion
statenment and he said he supported those guiding principles that
focus on professionalism and those activities. Comm ssi oner
Duffy acknowl edged <concerns [that had been brought forth
regarding certain people in the departnent or the way data had

been presented to the Board of Fisheries in the past]. He said
he would need to look at the details and know the facts
surrounding the issue before he would be willing to take any

specific action and he thought it is incunbent as a |eader to
know all sides of the issue. Comm ssioner Duffy said he expects
prof essionalism from the people that work for and with him He
said his approach to managenent of fish and wildlife resources
is a teamwork approach

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY pl edged he would do everything he could to
ensure that the department is providing tinely, accurate, and
scientifically valid information to the respective boards. He
said if nenbers of the public do not feel that the departnent is
providing that kind of information to these boards, he wanted
t hose people to contact himto work through those probl ens.

Number 2904

REPRESENTATI VE  WOLF  suggested the five-year ocean fish
escapenent goals on the Kenai River early run and King sal non
run had dropped to 849 in the |ast seven years. He said it
falls below the 1989 escapenent run of 1134, He said a
noratorium was placed on the guide nunbers on the Kenai River
| ate | ast year. He asked Comm ssioner Duffy how he thought the
departnment should try to correct the fall of the five-year ocean
fish. He asked whether there was the possibility of a
restriction and if he supported an enhancenent program

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY, in response, said he is not very well versed
on the particular issue and he could not imrediately provide a
detailed response to the question. He offered to pursue a
detail ed response for Representative WIf follow ng the neeting.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he would provide Conmm ssioner Duffy
with a copy of the report and discuss it further with him

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK asked Conm ssioner Duffy's for his opinion
on the make up of the Board of Fisheries and whether he thought
it is balanced to represent the sport fish industry versus the
commercial fishing industry.

The commttee took an at-ease from2:07 p.m to 2:08 p.m
Nunber 2778

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said in reviewing the resunes of Board of
Fi sheries appointees she noticed that there nmay only be one
[ appoi ntee] that could adequately represent the sport fish
i ndustry.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY, in response, said there are two new board
appoi ntments comng up that he thought were very inportant. He
said from what he had seen of the new board [excluding those new
appoi ntments] he was excited about how each board nenber was not
only representing his or her parochial interests but also trying
to represent a broad spectrum of Al askan interests. He said he
had di scussed with board nenbers the need to represent a full
spectrum of interests when sitting on a board that allocates the
resources of the state. Comm ssioner Duffy said he thought the
new board was very representative of the range of interests, and
he hoped and believed that the new appointnents comng soon
woul d continue to support a broad range of interests. He said
he is hopeful that the recreational fisheries will be adequately
represent ed.

Number 2686

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK suggested that commercial fisheries are
seen as an Al askan way of life, and the incone is focused just
on "conmp fish." She said to date the |egislature had introduced

over 200 bills that help out the comercial fisheries industry.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said she is an Al aska Native who has |ived
in the state since she was born, and that she grew up on the
Yukon River. She said her dad's [fishing] permt isn't worth
[ much noney] and he is having a | ot of trouble because of what's

happening with the fishing industry. She remarked, "I am afraid
that with it starting off at that area ... it's going to
continue to spread Ilike a wvirus." Representati ve Masek

expl ai ned that she would like to see this state focus a |ot nore

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2003



on the sport fishing industry because there are nmany people that

cone here [to fish]. She remarked, "If we can help ... to
bal ance it out; to ... keep in touch with our conp fish area
but try to focus nore on the sport fish." She said she thought

the legislature supports "conp fish" but really needs to | ook at
the sport fish industry.

Number 2612

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO tal ked about the appearance of farnmed fish
at the grocery store, and he suggested that it |ooks great and
consuners nay assune that [farnmed fish] nust be a better fish
He suggested that farmed fish appear to be uniform clear, and
undamaged, and he said it's difficult to get a comercial fish

that's [appearance] is equal to that of a farmed fish. He
indicated that farmed fish are easier to obtain, and he noted
t hat the appearance of the fish is very inportant.

Representative Gatto suggested that wild fish are very valuable
and are under priced, and farmed fish are nore expensive than
wild fish even though wld fish are nore val uable. He said he
assuned it is done that way "because we're stuck," and he noted
that the fish farnmers are able to keep the <costs down.
Representative Gatto asked if there was a way to get the price
of a very valuable commodity up.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY noted that he is not a marketing expert, and
he suggested that a narketing professional could provide nore
detail and nmuch nore definitive answers. He said Alaska is
attenpting to maintain market share in nost circunstances, but
there are sone opportunities in Europe and the donestic market
to expand the State's efforts with new product forns. He
remarked, "So, that's one way to try and increase the price;

to ook at new product fornms and to try and create new markets,
but there are a lot of barriers to doing those kind of
activities." Comm ssioner Duffy nentioned new products are
com ng out on the market.

Number 2480

COW SSI ONER DUFFY i ndicated that new products are gaining sone
mar ket share. He said there are other sal non product forns that
are being | ooked at, and he suggested that the focus should be
on new product form and niche nmarkets. Comm ssi oner Duffy
tal ked about Al aska's success with Copper River salnon and early
season sockeye, which he said is one of the biggest things going
in Seattle. He suggested others are trying to build on those
mar keting efforts. Commi ssioner Duffy remarked, "I think it's

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2003



day by day, step by step; there is no silver bullet.” He
suggested it's a matter of concentration focus, finding niche
markets, and positively exploiting those [markets] to the
[greatest] extent possible to try to get nore noney for Al aska's
sal non.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said a national survey showed U.S. residents
spent $537 nmillion on fishing trips and equiprment in Alaska in
2001. In 2002, he said Alaska residents purchased 187,031
fishing licenses and 287,834 nonresident sport-fishing |icenses.
Representative Wl f offered his wunderstanding that ADF&G is
doing a study to try and determ ne why residents are buying |ess
licenses. He asked if it is due to overcrowdi ng.

COMM SSI ONER  DUFFY  excl ai ned, "That's a mllion dollar
guestion. " He said yes; overcrowding could be a part of the
i ssue.

Number 2368

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked Conm ssioner Duffy if he knew if
t he governor is going to have a resource cabinet.

COMWM SSIONER DUFFY said a specific decision on a resource
cabinet had not been nade, but the new admnistration had
[started to address] the volune at which fish and gane
managenent or resource issues are brought to the governor's
of fice for consideration. He said the admnistration certainly
considers it to be a priority focus and he would be encouraging
sone sort of a resource cabinet focus. Comm ssioner Duffy said
within the cabinet there are conm ssioners from the Departnent
of Commrerce and Econom c Devel opnent, ADF&S and the Departnent
of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment who are focusing on a rura
devel opment strategy, which is in the formative stages. He said
there are three commssioners plus Alan Austerman from the
governor's office who are focusing on sone of these federal
di saster nonies that the state had received for salnon, but a
fisheries cabinet or sub-cabinet and not been set up. He noted
that simlar things are being done, and he said he would be
encouragi ng that kind of a specific focus on resource nanagenent
i ssues.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she tended to agree wth
Comm ssioner Duffy in terns of nmanagenent of the departnent, and
she thought he was [correct] in his [managenent methods]. She
offered her observation that norale in [ADF&S is about at the
bottom right now, and she asked Comm ssioner Duffy about his

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2003



vision for the departnment and about what he is going to do to
hel p the norale in the departnent.

COM SSIONER  DUFFY told Representative Kerttula that her
observati on about ADF&G having sone norale problens is accurate.
He nentioned that the departnent is currently going through sone
stream i ning and reorgani zati on i ssues. He said he didn't think
that had hel ped the situation, especially for those people that
are adversely i npact ed from an enpl oynent st andpoi nt .
Comm ssioner Duffy said he thought that there was still a sense
of professionalism anong colleagues within the departnent even
with sone of the difficult issues that the departnent faces. He
said ADF&G enpl oyees are dedicated professionals who work many
hours in the sumrer tine, sonetimes working 18 hours a day, and
there is a sense of pride in what [ADF&G enpl oyees] do that it's
not just a job; it's a profession and a career.

Nunber 2179

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he wanted to support the pride in what
ADF&G enpl oyees do, and he thought there are a nunber of ways to
do that such as by ensuring that the departnent's experts are
provided wth opportunities to speak in public scientific
foruns, both nationally and internationally, to present cutting
edge work that is being done. He said there are internal reward
systens for outstanding performance that he would foster as a
conmi ssi oner. He said additional training to help people nove
up the "career ladder” is inportant and he would support those
type of activities. Comm ssioner Duffy said he thought it is
also inportant to look at inner divisional activities, and he
said he would Ilike to consider «cross training in sone
ci rcunstances. For exanple, he said a biologist in the Division
of Sport Fish mght work on a comercial fish issue for a while
or perhaps the other way around. He remarked, "I would like to
say that | am going to be the chanpion of dramatic increased
conpensation to fish and game enployees; that everyone around
this table, including ne, is cognizant of the fiscal constraints
that we are all operating under.”

Nunber 2111

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said that may change through tinme and there
may be opportunities, but he is focusing on trying to push the
professionalism and display the professionalism of t he
departnent's people. Comm ssioner Duffy said those are the
types of things that he would be focusing on over a four-year
period, but he was really thinking about this for the first six

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2003



nonths as conmm ssioner and then he would think about adding on
to that. He stated that he would like to try and acconplish a
few things in a short tinme frame and then build on what
successes he has.

Nunber 2078

CHAIR FATE offered his understanding that there was a recent
ruling made by the subsistence board regarding the Yukon River
that allows part of a subsistence catch to be sold. He asked
Comm ssioner Duffy if the state is taking a position on that
ruling.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said yes; other parties have already filed an
appeal to the federal subsistence board, although he didn't know
t he exact | anguage. He noted that he had not had a discussion
with his bosses in the governor's office, but it 1is the
intention of the departnent to pursue a reconsideration of this
action that was taken by the federal subsistence board about two
nont hs ago. Comm ssioner Duffy said the departnent [considered
the ruling] to be too open and not well defined and it m ght
al so be inconsistent with ANILCA [ Al aska National Interest Lands
Conservation Act]. He said the departnment will be making an
appeal of that deci sion.

CHAIR FATE offered his belief that there was a tine when
approximately eight [fish] buyers ranged between the City of
Gal ena and what would be considered "the bridge" or just below
Stevens Village today. He said these were all comrercial
buyers, and the fishernen on the Yukon were all naking a decent
anount of noney. However, he said today there is only one buyer
and that buyer can't [make a decent anount of noney] off of
Yukon fi sh.

CHAI R FATE explained that part of the reason was due to the
regime shifts, but another part of it was that the commerci al
fishery at the nouth of the Yukon River went over its quota year
after year by as nmuch as 10 percent. The result was that the
fishery's overage was alnbst as nuch as the rest of the entire
Yukon River quota. Chair Fate asked Comm ssioner Duffy if he
woul d use his influence on the brown water fisheries to bring
back commerci alizati on. He said nmarkets are strong, |ocal, and
don't depend so nmuch on international markets because those fish
are sold locally, yet those markets have been destroyed.

Chair Fate said he hoped enhancenent would be |ooked at once
nore, and he relayed his understanding that as long as the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- April 7, 2003



genetic stock from those river systens are used in the hatchery
and are nmde available to those hatcheries, then "the hatchery

word isn't that bad of a wrd" in sone of those areas,
particularly on the upper Yukon R ver. He asked Comm ssi oner
Duffy if he was going to |look into enhancing those river
fisheries. He remarked, "After all, if you don't have a good
river fishery, you certainly aren't going to have a blue water
fishery; that's where they spawn.” Chair Fate asked

Comm ssioner Duffy if he is going to ook into the subsistence
i ssue that had been raised.

Nunber 1877

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said Al aska had received significant federal
resources because of a disaster declaration and [ADF&G 1is
working with its constituents in the AYK region. He expl ai ned
that [ADF&G also has a collaborative research program which
currently has $10 mllion in funding to identify what the
bi ol ogi cal issues are associated with declining salnon stocks in
the AYK region. He said he is excited about the collaborative
work the departnent is doing in the that region. The departnent
has significant funding to analyze what the problens are. He
said he thought the problens [that Representative Fate had
rai sed] regarding declining salnmon runs are beconmng even
greater because of a declining abundance, allocations, and a
particular downriver action that has a greater inpacts upriver
in a declining resource situation. He said he will find out
through the Division of Comrercial Fisheries what the current
status is of the different commercial fisheries on the Yukon
Ri ver.

COW SSI ONER  DUFFY, in response to Representative Fate's
guesti on about enhancenent of the Yukon River, said one of thing
first things he worked on when he first started working for
ADF&G was regional and conprehensive salnon plans and in trying
to determ ne where the sal non enhancenent or hatchery prograns
should be 20 years later. Conm ssioner Duffy was told that the
decision not to put enhancenent facilities on the Yukon River
had been decided prior to his career in the departnent starting
in 1981. He said his first action wuld be to talk with the
area managenent biologists on the Yukon R ver about the
particular circunstances, get their opinions initially, and have
the biologists talk with the regional nmanagenent structure about
the possibility for enhancement on the Yukon.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY stated he would look into it but would not
make any prom ses about what the outcone of that particular

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- April 7, 2003



i ssue m ght be. He said it is a conplex issue on a main stem
river system where a lot of research is already being done to
try and find out what had caused previous problens. He
remarked, "I'm not saying that the enhancenent program by
definition, would cause problens; it's just an issue that was

deci ded upon from a policy perspective a nunber of years
ago; ... not [to] pursue it for the Yukon." He expl ai ned t hat
the current dual managenent structure consists of the federal
subsi stence board which is advised by the regional advisory
counci | s. He said there is an effort to devel op sone protocol
between the federal nanagers and state mangers to nmeke the in-
season managenent system as tolerable as possible given that
there are two structures operating in the Yukon. He said the
departnment is trying to do everything it can to try not to
forfeit any managenent decision nmaking authority on ADF&G and
the departnent is trying to work with the federal subsistence
staff [not only] to gain input, "but really to keep us in the
driver's seat."

Nunber 1611

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said inevitably a dual nanagenent system wil |
lead to conflict and could lead to an in-season special action
request through the federal subsistence board. So, he said the
departnment is trying to mke a difficult situation as
confortable as it possibly can and is cooperating as nmuch as it
can w thout giving up any nanagenent authority. Wth regard to
the norale problem this dual managemnent structure has
dramatically increased the workload for a nunber of managenent
bi ol ogi sts and regional managers wthin the departnent's
structure.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY explained that [biologists and regional
managers] now attend regional advisory council neetings to
provide information to the federal system and they also attend
federal subsistence board neetings. Neverthel ess, he said as
long [Alaska] is in this dual nmanagenent system the departnent
will continue to try to provide the best biological and
scientific information it can to the federal subsistence board
and the regional advisory councils in the hope that they nmake
intelligent decisions about the use and nanagenent of [Al aska's]
resour ces. Comm ssioner Duffy said he thought this speaks to
t he professional nature of the people in ADF&G

Nunber 1514

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- April 7, 2003



CHAIR FATE asked if there had been any discussion since he'd
been with departnent that related to the abrogation of the
rights of Alaskan's on navigable waters vis-a-vis those
contracts or nmanagenent agreenents with the federal governnent.
He remarked, "The state is managi ng sonething that they should

be managing in sonme view, | don't think that navigable water
i ssue has been put to rest; ... are they in fact aiding the feds
in cenenting in place their domain ... in navigable waters?"

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he thought the answer to that question
was no. He explained that he participated in the federal/state
i nt eragency workgroup for a period of tinme when he was a deputy
director in the Division of Commercial Fisheries. He said [the
wor kgroup] constantly ensured that any |anguage it was crafting
was reviewed by the attorney general's office with regard to

wor ki ng on menoranduns of understanding (MJUs) - how things wll
work given a dual nmanagenent system out in the field. He
indicated the state was not acquiescing any state rights or
state's authorities under that system He said MOUs are not

| egally binding and are not contracts. Comm ssioner Duffy said
the departnent had been really careful not to "nove in the wong
direction® on this one. He said he is not an expert on
navi gabl e waters and needed to |earn nore about that issue. He
noted that he does have good people in the departnment who focus
on those issues and work with the attorney general's office.
Comm ssioner Duffy stated that he did not have the expertise to
el aborate on the navigable waters situation at this point in
time.

CHAIR FATE offered his belief that there is only one sonar
|l ocated at Pilot Point, and he said different groups on the
Yukon Ri ver had requested at |east three sonars. He said by the
adm ssion of the Division of Commercial Fisheries and the
subsi stence fisheries in Fairbanks and the Interior, the
percentage of runs that go up the Tanana River or that continue
up the Yukon River into the Porcupine River and into the
spawni ng beds are not known. Representative Fate said there
have been efforts to get an accurate count on where those fish
really go and [the efforts result in] having the count comng in
to a certain |lower portion of the river where the sonar 1is
| ocated at Pilot Point.

Number 1327
REPRESENTATI VE FATE said it was his hope that ADF&G could

provide better research on both the Kuskokwi m and Yukon Rivers
as well as sonme of the other major spawning rivers to get sone

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 7, 2003



data that is neaningful and will help ADF&G begin to nmanage for
abundance.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG offered his wunderstanding that the
federal governnent pays biologists nore than the state does. He
asked Comm ssioner Duffy how nmany state biologists the state had
| ost to the federal governnent.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said the state had lost around 30 to 50
bi ol ogi sts, which was significant. He said the state is faced
with a situation in which a nunber of departnent biol ogists have
been on 20-year retirenent prograns that are slowy comng to an
end as those people retire, because there is no |onger a 20-year
retirement program in the departnent. He said there is also
i ncreasi ng opportunity t hr ough t he f eder al system for
bi ol ogi sts, and not only is the base conpensation in a |ot of
ci rcunst ances higher, but [federal enployees] also receive a 25
percent Cost of Living Allowance (COLA) in the federal system
He said there are very well trained, very professional wldlife
and fisheries biologists reaching 20 years wth the departnent
W th secondary opportunities out there in which the conpensation

is significantly higher. Comm ssioner Duffy explained that a
| ot of people have been availing thenselves of that opportunity
on an annual Dbasis. He said the state had experienced a

significant novenent of biologists fromthe state systemto the
federal system

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Commi ssioner Duffy if his statenent
that he worked for the governor was correct.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY stated that the governor is his supervisor
but he works for the State of Al aska representing all interests
and representing the conservation of |ong-term enhancenent
protection of the fish and wildlife resources of Al aska.

Nunmber 1128

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the public expects [governnent
officials] to do the best job possible. He noted there had been
a hint that the Division of Habitat and Restoration Services nmay
be transferred. Representative Gatto stated that ADF&G is
charged in statute to protect [Al aska' s] resources [regardless
of which departnment the Dvision of Habitat and Restoration
services is located in]. He said it is so inportant to the
community that the resource, habitat, and everything el se around
those things is well protected. Representative Gatto said [the
public is counting on the commssioner of ADF&G and the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- April 7, 2003



| egi slature] to ensure that happens. He rem nded the conm ttee
that [governnment officials] work for the public, and he said if
the public is happy, then those jobs are really being done well.

COW SSI ONER DUFFY said he takes the discharge of his duties as
conmmi ssioner under Title 16 very seriously and he is conmtted
to do everything possible to discharge his duties effectively.

CHAIR FATE said it was brought to his attention by a nenber of
his staff that there "are other fish to fry." He Dbrought
attention to the halibut, crab, and shrinp industries and he
asked Conmi ssioner Duffy to comrent on those industries.

Nunber 0952

COMWM SSIONER DUFFY said he is actively engaged in crab
managenent issues through NPFMC. The departnment had recently
designed a rationalization program that includes a fleet
reduction of crab vessels. The program is an |FQ [individual

fishing quotal] program for the individual vessel based on a
catch history. There is a processor quota conponent based on a
processor's previous participation in the fishery and there are
al so a nunber of conmmunity protection neasures built into the
rationalization program He said sonme of the crab stocks in the

Bering Sea aren't doing so well and the fisheries have been
seriously curtailed to address those issues. He said the hope
is for a rebound in some of those crab stocks, and that he
t hought the managenent program is sound on crab. Comm ssi oner
Duffy said with a rationalized fishery where the nunber of
participants will be downsized and an | FQ systemis i nplenented,
there will no longer be a race for crab or fish. He said under
an |IFQ system one wll be able to harvest crab wthin the
bi ol ogical perineters of the animals and wll not have to

participate any longer in a race for fish.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY explained that harvesters will be able to
har vest for mar ket opportunity and timng W th t he
[ participating] processor. He said he thought that sone of the
resources relating to the crab industry are struggling a bit,
but the departnent is designing a program that is going to be
responsive. He said the programis not without its controversy,
but there are not many fish and ganme issues in which decisions
are made that do not have sonme controversy. Comm ssi oner Duffy
stated that he is in support of the program and he suggested
that noving to an | FQ program fishery for crab in the future is
the way to go. He said the departnment is doing sonme basic stock
assessnments and research on shrinp stocks. There are sone

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- April 7, 2003



shrinp fisheries in Southeast that have experienced sone
increase in the shrinp popul ations, such as in the Kodiak area.
He said he is tracking sone of those issues and that pollock is
the "big driver” under NPFMC in the groundfish [industry].

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said pollock "row' early in the season in
February through the traw, longline, and pot fisheries, and is
providing a |ot of econom c opportunity in Al aska. He expl ai ned
that pacific cod is another fishery that is managed under
[ NPEFMC] and is doing very well on abundance in the Bering Sea
and Al eutian |Islands. He said perhaps there are sone issues
associated with the biological status of Pacific cod stocks in
the Gulf of Alaska, but nothing alarmng; it's an issue that the
[departnment is follow ng]. Commi ssioner Duffy said the
groundfish industry in Alaska is very solid.

Number 0685

DON JOHNSON testified, and he said those people involved in the
confirmation and appoi ntnment process of Comm ssioner Duffy got a
"sem -deal" that was struck by the commercial and sport fishing
industries with regard to deputy comm ssioners. He said the
[sport] and commercial fishing industry were in support of
Comm ssioner Duffy with the understanding that there was going
to be a deputy comm ssioner appointed for both the conmercial
and sport fishing industries. He said it is his understanding
that since the appointnment [of Comm ssioner Duffy], the
comercial fisheries deputy [conm ssioner] was appoi nted but the
sport fisheries deputy [comm ssioner] is no longer a viable
i dea. He remarked, "I guess | am feeling a little bit short
changed out the deal." M. Johnson said he questioned whether
the "sem-deal" that the industries had worked out in getting
behind the appointnents is actually going to be carried out and
followed through to provide a sport fisheries deputy alongside
the commercial fisheries deputy. He asked if a comerci al
fisheries deputy conm ssioner was going to be hired.

Number 0537

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he didn't know about any deals that had
been nade. He noted that he hadn't hired anyone for any
positions in the conm ssioner's office since he'd taken over as
active comm ssioner. Comm ssioner Duffy said he is |ooking for
sonmeone who can represent varied interests, and he indicated he
did not have the funding to hire deputy comm ssioners for each
particular interest. He pledged that he is looking for the
quality of candidates who can represent all interests. He said

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- April 7, 2003



he acknowl edged and respected M. Johnson's point about people
wanting representation and he would do everything he can to
bring in people who represent a nunber of interests.

Nunmber 0386

PAUL SHADURA, President and Executive Director, Kenai Peninsula
Fi shermen's Association (KPFA), testified. He said KPFA was in
support of the earnest efforts by Governor [Frank] Murkowski and
the adm nistration to strengthen and add vigor to the conmerci al
fishing industry. He relayed KPFA's belief that the concepts of
sound biological managenent and the highest sustainable yield
are hallmarks to bring profitability and integrity back into the
state's nost diversified industry. He noted that Conm ssioner
Duffy was not [KPFA s] prinme choice for the comm ssioner of
ADF&G, but he said if the governor feels confident in
[ Comm ssioner Duffy's] abilities to manage the state's resources
for the maxi mum benefit of its comercial fishing industry, then
KPFA is in support of the appointnent of Conm ssioner Duffy.

M. SHADURA relayed KPFA's belief that the main issues lie
within the "building blocks”™ of the nanagenent team of ADF&G
He said the strong scientific commtnment with the direction of a
statewi de salnon fisheries business plan is inperative, and he
suggested [Alaska] is playing a "gane of catch up" in the gl oba
salmon market and is in need of support staff - directors,
deputy directors, and deputy conm ssioners - that can "run the
marat hon race and win." He said contentious individuals are not
needed in this arena, and the integrity of the sport and
comercial fisheries division nmust be of the highest order. M.
Shadura suggested that professionalism and dedication should be
rewarded, and he invited the conmssioner to cone to the
Sout hcentral fishing comunity to see and hear the regions
conpl ex probl ens. He said with this mutual know edge and an
honest dedicated effort, long l|lasting managenent solutions can
be found. M. Shadura said if new investnents are brought into
[ Al aska' s] distressed salnon fisheries, then stabilization and
opportunities for all of the state's fishing comunities in each
regi on nust be ensured.

Number 0125

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said wldlife managenent is a very inportant
issue in Alaska, and a | ot of people engage in the Board of Gane
process to affect allocation decisions and engage in contacting
him legislators, and the governor's office with particular
perspectives on ganme managenent issues. He said he thought the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- April 7, 2003



i nportance of these issues from a crossover perspective from
fish to ganme is consistent and very significant to residents and
nonresi dents in Al aska. He conveyed his belief that it will be
necessary to have sone expertise on gane nmanagenent in the
comm ssioner's office. Conm ssioner Duffy said one concept he'd
been thinking about is not only to have two deputies but also to
enhance the scientific presence of people wth wldlife
experience in the comm ssioner's office, such as with a science
advisory or wldlife scientist type position to bolster that
i ssue [tape ends m dspeech].

TAPE 03-26, SIDE A
Number 0001

COW SSI ONER DUFFY told the commttee that the public advises
the game board through a proposal process and the gane board
makes decisions on allocations. The gane board may at tines
make recommendations to the comm ssioner of ADF&G He said he
thought it was a sound system that doesn't need to be changed,
rather it needs to be supported. He said it is inportant that
the departnent within the Division of WIldlife Conservation have
adequate funding to provide that scientific and biological
expertise to the gane board, so it can nmake the best deci sions.
He said the Dyvision of WIdlife Conservation, unlike the
commercial fish division, is primarily federally funded.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said things get conplicated and politically
charged when talking about certain wldlife mnagenent
deci si ons, and he understands that. He said 1in nost
circunstances he believes in a nmaxinmum sustained yield that
provides as much opportunity as possible to both resident and
nonresi dent consunptive wusers in Al aska. He explained that
there are certain activities that the department is evaluating
such as a predator control programin the McGath area based on
probl ens with npbose popul ations. Conmm ssioner Duffy stated that
he was in support of predator control prograns in certain
ci rcunst ances, and he said the gane board has nmade a
reconmendation to the departnment on a predator control program
for noose and bears in [Ganme Managenent Unit (GW)] 13 |ocated
in the Nelchina Basin. He renmarked:

What we are doing in that area is over the next 11
nonths we're ... really going out and talking to all
users of the resource .... I'mcalling the process an
i nformed consent process to try and bring sone buy-in,
if possible, into a particular approach for this
pr ogram The reason | am taking that approach is

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- April 7, 2003



because ... if we are going to engage in wldlife
managenent progranms that are controversial, then |
think we need to at least ... bring ... nmenbers of the
public up to speed on the particular issue, and why
particul ar deci sions are bei ng nade.

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY stated that the public arena is really the
Board of Gane arena, and he was not taking away from that. He
said if the [departnent] is going to [create] these type of
pr ogr ans, they need to be sustainable and long term
Comm ssioner Duffy said in sone circunmstances he thought that
was a better approach than a decision and [introducing] an
i mredi ate program that is extrenely controversial only to be
potentially shut down by litigation or sonme other neans.

Number 0300

COMM SSI ONER  DUFFY said when talking about gane board
reconmendati ons or decisions on predator control prograns, he is
required to nake a finding on those issues, and had recently
done that in the MG ath area. Conm ssioner Duffy said it is no
secret that he 1is <consulting with the admnistration on
decisions in those arenas. He said [the departnent] had agreed
and witten back to the ganme board on a particul ar perspective

that is somewhat controversial, but nevertheless he is in
support of predator control prograns. Commi ssioner Duffy
remarked, "I don't want to focus on this only, because | think

when you talk about the wldlife managenent arena you have a
range of tools that our managers and our scientists have, and
that they advise the ganme board in their decisions on." He said
the predator control program could be put on one end and on the
other end, for exanple, could be the recent expansion of a

buffer zone in Denali National Park and Preserve to protect
wol ves.
Number 0383

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he is not an expert in this arena but he
has a | ot of experts that work with him He said he is going to
try to enbellish that scientific expertise in the conmm ssioner's
office, but that doesn't nean that he is going to change the
deci sion maki ng process that he supports in the departnent. He
said from a day-to-day wldlife nmanagenent perspective he
supports managenent at the area level simlar to that of the
commercial fisheries. Commi ssioner Duffy said he wanted to
bol ster that team and he is relying on the expertise of a nunber
of researchers, managers, and biologists within the D vision of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- April 7, 2003



Wl dlife Conservation. He said he is relying on their expertise
from an area level up through the regional |evel advising the
ganme board, and he looks forward to a cooperative, productive
working relationship with the gane board. He said he is under
no illusions about how difficult these situations are.
Comm ssioner Duffy pledged to work with the public body and the
Board of Ganme on nmaking public policy decisions in the best
interests of the state. He said he will internally work with
his staff on a daily basis to ensure that the advice being
provided to the Board of Ganme is sound and biologically
def ensi bl e.

CHAI R FATE asked Comm ssioner Duffy if he would be actively
managi ng i nstead of passively managi ng.

COMWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he would be supporting an active
managenent approach as comm ssi oner of ADF&G.

CHAIR FATE noted that Comm ssioner Duffy had stated that he
would rely very heavily on scientific evidence and on
bi ol ogi sts, but he didn't nention sone of the local people in
the areas that are affected by sone of the decisions he would be
maki ng. He asked where local people cone into that "power

in the decision making formula.”

COW SSI ONER  DUFFY  apol ogi zed for not nment i oni ng | ocal
participation, and he said it was an oversight on his part. He
said there are multiple entry points but one of the first one is
to ensure that |ocal people can participate in the gane board
al I ocati on process and t he deci si on maki ng process.
Comm ssioner Duffy said he would be supporting prograns that
would create cooperative working relationships between the
departnment and |ocal residents. He said [the departnent is
considering] enhancing local predator control efforts in the
MG ath area to reduce the population of wolves in that region
through facilitating their pursuit of wolves. He said he
thought working wth local residents is inperative in this
process, and he wants their active involvenent in Al aska.

Nunmber 0688

CHAIR FATE suggested that there are scientists and gane
bi ol ogi sts who put a "twst" or a "spin" on their findings. He
asked Commi ssioner Duffy what his philosophy on hiring his
enpl oyees is and what kind of a spin he would allow to be pl aced
on things. Chair Fate remarked, "So, if we rely so heavily on
those people that place this spin, we're right back where we

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- April 7, 2003



started.” He asked Conm ssioner Duffy how he proposed to handle
t hat .

COWM SSI ONER DUFFY said he planned on a program that does not
put a spin on scientific and biological studies and he wants
research done that is brought to the gane board or other public
foruns based on its scientific nerits. He stated that he did
not support a program that [involves] twisting the nunbers to
conme out with a certain philosophy, and he said he thought that
would be irresponsive of the departnent to do that.
Comm ssioner Duffy said he had spoken with a mnenber about
simlar concerns but it was in not in regard to ganme nmanagenent.
He said he would not support that for gane nmanagenent issues
internally, but he could not control what tw st or spin other
non-department nenbers put on scientific information that they
have. Comm ssioner Duffy said Board of Game nenbers are very
bright, have a lot of scientific expertise, and are going to
recogni ze that kind of information when it conmes out.

Number 0904

CHAI R FATE, wupon determning no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE  WOLF  conpl i nment ed Comm ssi oner Duf fy for
"stepping right into that predator control."

[ Though no notion was made, the appointnent of Kevin Duffy as
the comm ssioner of the Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane was
advanced. ]

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 3:04 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -32- April 7, 2003



